
 
 

31 May 2022 
 
 

Joint Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date: 
 

9 June 2022 

Time: 
 

6.30 pm 

Venue: 
 

QEII Room, Shoreham Centre 

 
 

Committee Membership:  
 
Adur District Council: Councillors; Joss Loader (Adur Chairman), Mandy Buxton (Adur 
Vice-Chairman), Carol Albury, Tony Bellasis, Ann Bridges, Paul Mansfield, 
Sharon Sluman and Debs Stainforth 
 
Worthing Borough Council: Councillors; Ibsha Choudhury, Rita Garner, 
Dan Hermitage (Worthing Vice-Chairman), Margaret Howard, Daniel Humphreys, 
Heather Mercer, Jon Roser (Worthing Chairman) and Elizabeth Sparkes 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Agenda 
Part A 
 
1. Declaration of Interests   
 
 Members and officers must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests in relation 

to any business on the agenda. Declarations should also be made at any stage 
such an interest becomes apparent during the meeting. 
 
If in doubt contact the Legal or Democratic Services representative for this 
meeting. 
 

2. Substitute Members   
 

Public Document Pack



3. Confirmation of Minutes   
 
 To approve the minutes of the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting of 

held on 17 March 2022, copies of which have been previously circulated. 
 

4. Public Question Time   
 
 So as to provide the best opportunity for the Committee to provide the public with 

the fullest answer, questions from the public should be submitted by 12.00pm 
Tuesday 7 June 2022 
  
Where relevant notice of a question has not been given, the person presiding 
may either choose to give a response at the meeting or respond by undertaking 
to provide a written response within three working days. 
  
Questions should be submitted to Democratic Services 
democratic.services@adur-worthing.gov.uk  
 
(Note: Public Question Time will operate for a maximum of 30 minutes.) 
 

5. Items Raised Under Urgency Provisions   
 
 To consider any items the Chairman of the meeting considers to be urgent 

 
6. Consideration of any matter referred to the Committee in relation to a call-in 

of a decision   
 
7. Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2021/22  (Pages 5 - 

22) 
 
 To consider a report by the Director for Digital, Sustainability and Resources, 

copy attached as item 7.  
 

8. JOSC Work Programme review  (Pages 23 - 36) 
 
 To consider a report by the Director for Digital, Sustainability and Resources, a 

copy of which is attached as item 8 
 

9. JOSC Working Group - Review of the Worthing Business Improvement 
District (BID)  (Pages 37 - 52) 

 
 To consider a report by the Director of Digital, Sustainability and Resources, a 

copy of which is attached as item 9 
 

 
 

Recording of this meeting  
The Council will be livestreaming the meeting, including public question time.  The 
recording will be available on the Council’s website as soon as practicable after the 
meeting.  The Council will not be recording any discussions in Part B of the agenda 
(where the press and public have been excluded). 
 

 



For Democratic Services enquiries relating 
to this meeting please contact: 

For Legal Services enquiries relating to 
this meeting please contact: 

Chris Cadman-Dando  
 Democratic Services Officer  
 01903 221364 
chris.cadman-dando@adur-worthing.gov.uk 

Joanne Lee 
Solicitor 
01903 221134 
joanne.lee@adur-worthing.gov.uk 

 
 
Duration of the Meeting:  Four hours after the commencement of the meeting the 
Chairperson will adjourn the meeting to consider if it wishes to continue.  A vote will be 
taken and a simple majority in favour will be necessary for the meeting to continue.  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee
9 June 2022

Key Decision [No]

Ward(s) Affected:N/A

Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2021/22

Report by the Director for Digital, Sustainability & Resources

Executive Summary

1.    Purpose

1.1  This report sets out the draft Annual report for the Committee covering the
2021/22 Municipal year in accordance with the terms of the Councils’
constitutions.

2.     Recommendations

2.1   That the Committee approves the Joint Overview and Scrutiny
Committee Annual report for 2021/22; and

2.2   That the Annual report be submitted to the Adur and Worthing Council
meetings in July 2022 for approval.

1
5

Agenda Item 7



3. Context

3.1 As part of good practice and a requirement in the Councils’ constitutions, the
Councils are required to produce a Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Annual report for 2021/22 for approval by the Committee and thereafter by the
Full Councils.  The final Annual report will be available from the Councils’
website.

4. Issues for consideration

4.1 The 2021/22 Municipal Year was again an unusual year due to the Covid-19
pandemic and has proved challenging for the Councils on a number of levels.
Despite these challenges, the JOSC has continued to meet regularly, holding
virtual meetings and one in person meeting. The Committee directed its
resources to scrutinise issues where it could make the most impact. The
Committee has continued to ensure that there has been a ‘Holding to
Account/Challenge’ role applied. A summary of the work is contained in the
JOSC Annual report for 2021/22 which is attached as an appendix to this
report. As well as being a requirement of the Constitutions, it is good practice
to produce an Annual report on the work of Overview and Scrutiny which can
help publicise and promote the work undertaken amongst the local community
and local partners.

4.2 Members of the public and/or local partners are able to make a scrutiny
request using an online scrutiny form and this helps encourage people to
take part in the scrutiny process and the democratic process as well as
helping the public to influence decision making.

5. Engagement and Communication

5.1 The Joint Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of the JOSC have been consulted on
this report and the previous Chairmen/Vice-Chairmen of the Committee have
also been consulted.

6. Financial Implications

6.1 There are no direct financial implications associated with this report.

7. Legal Implications

7.1 Under Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Councils have the
powers to do anything to facilitate or which is conducive or incidental to the

2
6



discharge of any of their functions.

7.2 Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 provides a Local Authority to do anything
that individuals generally may do (subject to any current restrictions or
limitations prescribed in existing legislation).

7.3 Section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 1999 (LGA 1999) contains a
general duty on a best value authority to make arrangements to secure
continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised,
having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

7.4 The JOSC is required to produce an Annual report for approval by the
Councils in accordance with the Councils’ constitutions and good practice.
The Council meetings in July will be required to receive the Annual report.

Background Papers

Agendas, reports and minutes from Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee
meetings during 2021/22.

Officer Contact Details:-
Mark Lowe
Scrutiny & Risk Officer
Town Hall,
Worthing,
West Sussex,
BN11 1HA
Tel No: 01903 221009
mark.lowe@adur-worthing.gov.uk

3
7

mailto:mark.lowe@adur-worthing.gov.uk


Sustainability & Risk Assessment

1. Economic

Matter considered. No direct issues identified but some issues discussed by
the Committee have an economic impact.

2. Social

2.1 Social Value

Matter considered. It is good practice for the Councils to produce an Annual
report which can help publicise and promote the work of the Committee
amongst the local community and local partners. The work of the Committee
may lead to improvements in communities and help promote social value.

2.2 Equality Issues

Matter considered. Copies of the Annual report will be available on the
Council website and can be made available to people on request if they do
not have access to a computer or are blind or partially sighted.

2.3 Community Safety Issues (Section 17)

Matter considered and no direct issues identified but the Committee has
discussed community safety issues during 2021/22.

2.4 Human Rights Issues

Matter considered and no issues identified.

3. Environmental

Matter considered. The Committee has scrutinised the progress with
Sustainable AW as part of its Work Programme.

4. Governance

Matter considered. It is good practice for the Councils to produce an Annual
Report on Overview and Scrutiny and is a requirement of the Constitution and
the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules. It is also part of good
Governance practice for the Councils to have an effective oversight and
scrutiny function in place to encourage constructive challenge and debate on
Council policies and practices.

4
8



Adur and Worthing Joint Overview and
Scrutiny Committee Annual Report
2021/22

5
9



Message from the Chairmen

On behalf of the Adur & Worthing Joint Overview and
Scrutiny Committee (JOSC) we are pleased to present the
Annual report for 2021/22. This report sets out  the JOSC’s
purpose and function in Adur and Worthing in 2021/22 and
some details of the Committee’s key work.

This year has again been a challenging year for everyone.
The Covid-19 pandemic has continued to have an enormous
impact on everyone’s lives. The Committee has, however,
continued to meet virtually and held one in person meeting to
ensure that proper scrutiny of Council services continues to be
undertaken and that the Council Executive Members and
Senior Officers are ‘held to account’. The Committee’s work has
again been driven by the Councils’ wider strategic objectives
and priorities set out in ‘Platforms for our Places’ strategic
Vision as well as scrutinising the Council’s finances, savings
proposals and the provision of housing services but this year
has also focused on scrutinising issues/services that have been
impacted by the pandemic and the recovery processes which
have been put in place to help local businesses and
the communities recover during and after the pandemic. The
challenges facing the Councils require joined up thinking and
effective partnership working. The Joint Overview and Scrutiny
function can help support this as a key part of the
democratic-decision making process and can help shape the
Councils policies, improve community wellbeing and
accountability for the benefit of Adur and Worthing residents.

The Committee’s work will help ensure that the Council
Executives (Joint Strategic Committee) and other partners are

6
10



scrutinised for the actions taken.

In 2021/22 JOSC has played its part in scrutinising a
number of important issues and the Leaders of the Councils,
relevant Executive Members, the Chief Executive and local
stakeholders have all attended meetings to answer questions
on relevant issues within their areas of responsibility including:-

● Interviewing and ‘holding to account’ the Adur and
Worthing Council Leaders in July 2021 to ensure that the
Councils’ priorities are being delivered.

Outcomes - The Members of the Committee were able to
question the Leaders on issues within their remits and to
find out what they and the Councils were doing to
address key policy issues for the benefit of the Adur and
Worthing communities and to ensure that the Councils
responses to the Covid-19 Pandemic have been effective.
This has helped ensure that their decision making on
service and policy provision has been transparent and
provides value for money for Adur and Worthing
residents’ benefit.

● There have also been regular reviews of financial
information by the Committee this year. Financial Scrutiny
takes place year round and in 2021/22 the Committee
undertook a review of the Revenue Outturn for 2020/21
and savings proposals for 2022/23.

Outcomes - Financial Scrutiny is vital to provide a check
on the finances and  ensure that the Council Executives
are held to account and making decisions in the best
interests of the communities. This regular check on the
Councils’ financial position has enabled the Committee to
question Council Officers and the Executive Members on
the status of the current financial position and for an

7
11



explanation on current and future expenditure including
the impact of Covid-19 and cost of living and other
inflationary pressures on the Council finances.

● The Committee also Interviewed the Adur and Worthing
Councils’ Chief Executive in October 2021 and March
2022 to assess progress made in delivering the
commitments in the strategic vision ‘Platforms for our
Places: Going further 2020/22.

Outcomes - This in-depth Scrutiny has enabled the
Committee to investigate the status and delivery of the
activities and commitments for the three year Strategic
vision to check that this is progressing in a timely manner.
Speaking with the Chief Executive gave the Committee
the opportunity to question her regarding the make up of
the aims and commitments in the strategic vision. The
Chief Executive was also questioned on those projects
which were at risk, what the Councils were doing to
address the risks and also the delivery of Council services
during the Covid-19 pandemic. This scrutiny will continue
during 2022/23 to check on progress with delivering the
strategic vision and new Strategy when that is in place.

● The Committee received a report from one of its Working
Groups that has undertaken a review of the Adur and
Worthing Evening and Night Time economy (ENTE).

Outcomes - The outcomes from the review revealed that
although there was a lot of excellent work ongoing to
improve the vibrancy of the ENTE and help it recover from
the pandemic, the ENTE had been hit hard by the
pandemic and a lot more work still was needed to continue
to help businesses and the communities recover. The
Working Group offered a series of recommendations for

8
12



how the Councils and other stakeholders could support
the ENTE to rebuild in the aftermath of the Covid-19
pandemic which are relevant at this time. These
recommendations centred on keeping Adur and Worthing
safe and light in the evening and at night, ensuring that
the Councils do more to promote the ENTE and include a
commitment in the Corporate Strategy to recognise the
importance of the ENTE. The Working Group also
considered that there was a need for more events in Adur
and Worthing and that a Hospitality Scheme was required
for Adur (Pub Watch) to help address crime and anti social
behaviour issues in the hospitality sector. The findings
from the review will be reported to the Joint Strategic
Committee (JSC) and the JOSC will review the responses
when they are received during 2022/23.

● Interviewing and ‘holding to account’ the Adur and
Worthing Council Executive Members during 2021/22 to
ensure that the Executive Members are delivering their
priorities.

Outcomes - The Members of JOSC have been able to
question and hold to account the Executive Members
(with the exception of the Executive Members for
Regeneration who were unable to attend the final meeting
of the year) on issues within their remits and to find out
what they and the Councils were doing to address these
key issues for the benefit of the Adur and Worthing
communities.

● The JOSC has also scrutinised the progress in delivering
Sustainable AW in order to tackle the climate emergency
and the new targets for the Councils and the community.

Outcomes - This scrutiny has enabled JOSC to monitor

9
13



the work the Councils are doing in this area to ensure that
it is being targeted in the correct way. Further scrutiny
work will continue on this in 2022/23.

● JOSC has also reviewed the performance of Worthing
Theatres and Museum Trust. The Trust was set up
following the transfer of the service away from the
Councils.

Outcomes - This scrutiny has enabled JOSC to review
the performance of the Trust since the transfer which has
coincided with the Covid-19 pandemic that affected the
service.

● JOSC also wanted to keep a careful watch on economic
recovery in general across Adur and Worthing during the
pandemic and as part of this, JOSC received a report
which provided extensive detail on the work which had
been undertaken by the Councils to provide support for
businesses and the communities during the pandemic.
The report also provided an overview of how the local
economy in Adur and Worthing was ‘bouncing back’ from
the pandemic, and highlighted the ongoing areas of work
which were supporting the area’s most vulnerable
residents and businesses.

Outcomes - This scrutiny has enabled JOSC to monitor
the support being provided to ensure it was being directed
appropriately to support the communities.

● As part of its crime and disorder scrutiny role, JOSC has
also interviewed the Chairman of the Adur and Worthing
Safer Communities Partnership and the Adur & Worthing
Executive Members for Health and Wellbeing

10
14



Outcomes - This has enabled JOSC to find out more
about the priorities for safer communities and what is
being done to deliver these and make Adur and Worthing
safer places. Further scrutiny of these key issues will be
undertaken again in 2022/23.

● JOSC has also been able to scrutinise the progress in
delivering the commitments set out in the Housing
Strategy for the Councils 2020-2023 - ‘Enabling
communities to thrive in their own home’

Outcomes - This scrutiny has enabled JOSC to review
the progress in delivering the Housing Strategy, the overall
provision of housing related wellbeing and support, the
provision of better homes and stronger communities and
affordable housing. JOSC has also been able to question
Officers and the Executive Members for Customer
Services to ensure that resources are being directed
accordingly to control these key issues.

● This year JOSC also held an in depth question and
answer session with Southern Water to discuss bathing
water quality in Adur and Worthing and also other matters
that Southern Water are responsible for such as drainage
and connection of the Houseboats in Shoreham to the
sewerage system and also flooding issues in Lancing.
There was some good engagement with the communities
on this item and the communities were allowed to put
questions to Southern Water.

Outcomes - JOSC have asked Adur District Council to
investigate options to apply to have part of the River Adur
that stretches through Shoreham designated as bathing
water. Southern Water have also been asked to work with
the Councils to have the houseboats connected to the

11
15



main sewage system. Southern Water were also asked to
look at bathing water testing sites. JOSC will review the
progress with these issues to ensure that action is taken.

● JOSC has also reviewed the delivery Plan that has been
agreed by the Councils for the Adur and Worthing Health
and Wellbeing Strategy 2021 - 2024.

Outcomes - Scrutinising this delivery Plan has enabled
JOSC to keep up to date with the issues and review what
progress is being made to help improve the health and
wellbeing of the communities.

● In March 2022 JOSC reviewed the Councils approach to
providing seasonal concessions in Adur and Worthing.
This followed receipt of a public scrutiny request which
had asked for the matter to be reviewed because of
concern about noise from some of the concessions and
the impact on the environment.

Outcomes - This scrutiny has enabled JOSC to review
the approach to concessions and JOSC has also
requested that formal consultation with existing
businesses should be undertaken in future as part of the
concessions approval process.

● JOSC has also continued to review the Adur Homes
Repairs and Maintenance service via a Working Group.

Outcomes - The Working Group has been able to review
the transformation process being put in place for the
service which was agreed as part of the original Scrutiny
review and the Working Group will continue to meet again
in 2022/23 to review these issues.

12
16



● JOSC has also instructed a Worthing only Working Group
to review the Worthing Business Improvement District
(BID) process which is due for a further ballot later in
2022.

Outcomes - The Working Group has finalised its report
and is due to report to JOSC in Summer 2022.

The Committee has Procedure Rules which assist members in
providing strong scrutiny, transparency and also to ensure that
all local decision makers are held to account for their decisions.

Councillors Joss Loader (Adur) and Charles James
(Worthing) Joint Chairmen of the Adur and Worthing Joint
Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 2021/22

What is Overview and Scrutiny?

The Local Government Act 2000 first introduced
the requirement for every local authority to include provision for
at least one Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Subsequent
amendments to the Act have further developed the role of
Overview and Scrutiny within local authorities.

13
17



Although not a decision making body, effective Overview and
Scrutiny has enormous potential to influence and inform
decisions made by both the Councils and partner bodies
connected with the areas.

The Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee can review and
scrutinise any matters which affect the Councils, the areas or
residents from those areas, in order to provide greater
transparency and accountability in the delivery of local services.

The following key roles have been identified as areas
which Overview and Scrutiny should be concerned with in
Adur and Worthing:-

● Representing the views and wishes of Adur and
Worthing residents about the services which they
receive;

● Holding the Joint Executives (Joint Strategic
Committee) to account and reviewing the decisions
made;

● Monitoring Council performance;
● Reviewing Policy;
● Developing Policy; and
● Scrutinising external issues of public concern beyond

the remit of the Councils.

There is one Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee made up
of sixteen Councillors (eight Adur and eight Worthing)
representing wards across the areas. The Committee as a
whole meets usually at least seven times a year and the
meetings are open to the public.

Detailed procedure rules regarding the operation of overview
and scrutiny can be found in the Council’s Constitution at
Procedure Rules

14
18

https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/media/Media,140002,smxx.pdf


Membership of the Committee in 2021/22:

Adur District Council – Councillors Joss Loader (Co-Chairman),
Carol Albury, Vee Barton, Ann Bridges, Mandy Buxton, Joe
Pannell, Sharon Sluman and Deborah Stainforth

Worthing Borough Council - Councillors Charles James
(Co-Chairman), Daniel Humphreys, Louise Murphy, Richard
Nowak, Jon Roser, Sally Smith, Vicki Wells and Rosey
Whorlow

Have your say…

You can find out more about our work on the internet at
Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee where you can look at
the reports we have received, our recommendations, the
minutes of our meetings and view the Work Programme.

Adur District Council and Worthing Borough Council are
committed to being more responsive to the way in which they
provide services. They want more people to feel that they have
the opportunity to influence matters that affect them. The Joint
Overview and Scrutiny Committee can look at these issues and
the Committee would like to give more people the chance to
contribute to its work.

15
19

https://democracy.adur-worthing.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=163


Suggest a topic for scrutiny

Each year the Joint Committee sets a Work Programme of
issues that it would like to review. The Joint Committee reviews
its Work Programme regularly throughout the year to make
sure that it is working on topics that it can make a major impact
on. The Work Programme is, therefore, subject to change in
agreement with the Committee. The Committee would like local
residents and stakehoIders to get more involved in the scrutiny
process so if there is an issue or service which you think that
Councillors should review, please make a ‘scrutiny request’
using the online Scrutiny request form which is accessible at
http://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/scrutiny

The Committee will consider your request and when
considering items for the Work Programme will be guided by
the Council’s Strategic Objectives set out in the strategic vision
‘Platforms for our Places:Going Further’ and the future
Corporate Strategy. The Committee will also be guided by the
ability to have influence and/or add value on the subject and
the PAPER criteria (Public Interest (P), Ability to change (A),
Performance (P), Extent (E) and Replication (R). Requests are
then considered initially by the Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen
and reported to the next available meeting of the Committee.

Come along to a meeting

The Committee would also like more public engagement in its
meetings and would encourage you to attend the public
meetings which are held at the Shoreham Centre and Worthing
Town Hall. Meetings are currently held at least seven times a
year. Public questions relating to Council issues can be put to
the meetings if submitted in advance.

16
20

http://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/scrutiny


To find out more you can contact Mark Lowe, Scrutiny and
Risk Officer at Town Hall, Chapel Road, Worthing on 01903
221009 or on mark.lowe@adur-worthing.gov.uk

17
21

mailto:mark.lowe@adur-worthing.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee
9 June 2022

Key Decision [No]

Ward(s) Affected:N/A

JOSC Work Programme review

Report by the Director for Digital, Sustainability & Resources

Executive Summary

1.   Purpose

1.1 This report outlines progress in implementing the work contained in the Joint
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JOSC) Work Programme for 2022/23.

2.   Recommendations

2.1 That JOSC note the progress in delivering the JOSC Work Programme for
2022/23 and consider and confirm appointments to JOSC Working Groups as
referred to in Paragraph 4.3.

1
23

Agenda Item 8



3. Context

3.1 The JOSC Work Programme for 2022/23 was agreed by the Committee in
March and confirmed by both Councils in April 2022. It is usual practice for the
Work Programme to be agreed at each meeting during the Municipal Year. A
copy of the 2022/23 Work Programme is attached as part of the Appendix to
this report.

3.2 Paragraph 9.2 of the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, which
form part of the Councils’ Constitutions and are binding on all Members,
states that the work programme will be approved by both Councils. A report
must also be taken to each full Council on an annual basis detailing any
changes to the Work Programme and this is usually reported mid year and for
22/23 this will be done in December 2022.

4. Issues for consideration

4.1 Items for the JOSC Work Programme need to be chosen guided by how
closely they align with the Councils’ Strategic objectives, how the Committee
can influence the outcomes and also general value and outcomes in
accordance with the (PAPER criteria) - P - Public Interest, (A) - Ability to
change, (P) - Performance, (E) - Extent and (R) - Replication.

4.2 The Committee is requested to review the draft Work Programme and
consider if any further items are required to be added to the Work
Programme. During the Municipal Year, items may be added to the JOSC
Work Programme, where appropriate. Requests for additional matters to be
included in the Work Programme will initially be considered by the Joint
Chairpersons in accordance with the criteria and they will make their
recommendations to the next JOSC for consideration and determination
following receipt of the Officer report. Consideration should also be given to
the capacity of the Committee and resources available when considering
further Work Programme items. The Committee should also be aware that
work is ongoing to review the Constitutions (via the Joint Governance
Committee) and the outcomes from this work might impact on the role of
JOSC and the individual Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

4.3 At this meeting it is also necessary for JOSC to confirm members to its
Working Groups. At this stage it is necessary to appoint members to the Adur
Homes Repairs and Maintenance Working Group -Members of the Working
Group in the previous year were Councillors Carol Albury, Vee Barton, Joss
Loader, Sharon SLuman and Deb Stainforth.

2
24



5. Engagement and Communication

5.1 The JOSC Chairmen, Vice-Chairmen and the Councils Leadership Team have
been consulted on the proposals contained in this report and in the Work
Programme.

6. Financial Implications

6.1 There are no direct financial implications to consider within this report,
however, some items contained in the Work Programme do have financial
implications for the Councils.

7. Legal Implications

7.1 Under Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Councils have the
power to do anything to facilitate or which is conducive or incidental to the
discharge of any of their functions.

7.2 Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 provides a Local Authority to do anything
that individuals generally may do (subject to any current restrictions or
limitations prescribed in existing legislation).

7.3 Section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 1999 (LGA 1999) contains a
general duty on a best value authority to make arrangements to secure
continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised,
having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

7.4 Paragraph 9.2 of the current Joint Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules,
which form part of the Councils’ Constitutions and are binding on all Members,
states that the Work Programme will be approved by both Councils. A report
must be taken to both Councils on an annual basis seeking both Councils’
approval of the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee work programme for
the forthcoming year and any changes to the Work Programme should be
submitted to the Councils approximately mid year for noting.

Background Papers

Joint Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules

3
25



Officer Contact Details:-
Mark Lowe
Scrutiny and Risk Officer
Tel: 01903 221009
mark.lowe@adur-worthing.gov.uk

4
26



Sustainability & Risk Assessment

1. Economic

Some of the issues scrutinised as part of the Work Programme could impact
on the development of our places or the economic participation of our
communities if implemented.

2. Social

2.1 Social Value

Some of the issues to be scrutinised as part of the Work Programme will have
an impact on the communities.

2.2 Equality Issues

Matter considered and no direct issues identified.

2.3 Community Safety Issues (Section 17)

Some of the issues being scrutinised will have community safety implications.

2.4 Human Rights Issues

Matter considered and no issues identified.

3. Environmental

Matter considered. The Work Programme includes an item to receive an
update on the Councils approach to climate change.

4. Governance

4.1 Matter considered and no direct issues identified. It is good practice for an
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to set its Work Programme ahead of the
Municipal Year. The current Joint Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules
state that the Work Programme will be approved by both Councils and that
any changes to the Work Programme should be submitted to the Councils
approximately mid year for noting.

5
27



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX

Adur & Worthing Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme -
2022/2023

Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee -  9 June 2022

AGENDA ITEM REPORT AUTHOR EXECUTIVE
MEMBERS/OFFICERS TO
ATTEND

CHANGE TO ORIGINAL WORK
PROGRAMME?YES/NO/REASON

Annual JOSC report for 2021/22 Joint Chairmen of JOSC No No

JOSC Worthing BID Working
Group report

Chairman of the Working
Group

No No

Review of JOSC Work Programme
and confirmation of JOSC Working
Group memberships for 2022/23

Director for Digital,
Sustainability & Resources

No No

1

29



Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 14 July 2022

AGENDA ITEM REPORT AUTHOR EXECUTIVE
MEMBERS/OFFICERS TO
ATTEND

CHANGE TO ORIGINAL WORK
PROGRAMME?YES/NO/REASON

Joint Revenue outturn report
2021/22

Director for Digital, Sustainability
& Resources/Chief Financial
Officer

Chief Financial Officer No

Outline Budget Strategy 2023/24 Director for Digital, Sustainability
& Resources/Chief Financial
Officer

Chief Financial Officer No

Interview with Executive
Members - To be confirmed

Director for Digital, Sustainability
& Resources

To be confirmed No

JOSC Cultural Services Working
Group report

Chairman of the Working Group No No

Worthing Theatres contract
monitoring

Director for Economy Director for Economy No

Adur Homes Repairs and
Maintenance transformation work
and feedback from the JOSC
Working Group

Report from the JOSC Working
Group and Housing
Transformation Manager

No No

Review of JOSC Work
Programme

Director for Digital, Sustainability
& Resources

No No

2

30



Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 15 September  2022

AGENDA ITEM REPORT AUTHOR EXECUTIVE
MEMBERS/OFFICERS TO
ATTEND

CHANGE TO ORIGINAL WORK
PROGRAMME?YES/NO/REASON

Interview with Executive
Members - To be confirmed

Director for Digital, Sustainability
& Resources

To be confirmed No

Report on the policy used by the
Councils when placing vulnerable
people in accommodation
outside of the Council areas -

Head of Housing Services No No

Annual summary of complaints
and compliments

Director for DIgital, Sustainability
& Resources

No No

Review of JOSC Work
Programme

Director for Digital, Sustainability
& Resources

No No

3

31



Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 13 October 2022

AGENDA ITEM REPORT AUTHOR EXECUTIVE
MEMBERS/OFFICERS TO
ATTEND

CHANGE TO ORIGINAL WORK
PROGRAMME?YES/NO/REASON

Interviews with Executive
Members - To be confirmed

Director for Digital, Sustainability
& Resources

To be confirmed No

Report on the delivery of
Platforms for our Places: Going
Further and progress on the
review of the delivery of the new
Corporate Strategy and interview
with Chief Executive

Director for Digital, Sustainability
& Resources

Chief Executive No

Annual update on progress with
delivering the Climate Change
agenda

Director for Digital, Sustainability
& Resources

Director for Digital,
Sustainability &
Resources/Sustainability
Manager

No

Crime and Disorder update -
Interview with the Chairman of
the Adur & Worthing Safer
Communities Partnership

Covering report - Director for
Digital, Sustainability &
Resources

Chairman of the Adur &
Worthing Safer Communities
Partnership and Executive
Members.

No

Review of JOSC Work
Programme

Director for Digital, Sustainability
& Resources

No No

Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 24 November 2022

4

32



AGENDA ITEM REPORT AUTHOR EXECUTIVE
MEMBERS/OFFICERS TO
ATTEND

CHANGE TO ORIGINAL WORK
PROGRAMME?YES/NO/REASON

Towards a sustainable financial
position - Budget update

Director for Digital, Sustainability
& Resources/Chief Financial
Officer

Chief Financial Officer No

Interview with Executive
Members - To be confirmed

Director for Digital, Sustainability
& Resources

To be confirmed. No

Review of progress on the
delivery of the Housing Strategy

Head of Housing Services Head of Housing No

Review of JOSC Work
Programme including note of
changes made since Work
Programme agreed by Councils
in April 2021

Director for Digital, Sustainability
& Resources

No No

5

33



Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 19 January 2023

AGENDA ITEM REPORT AUTHOR EXECUTIVE
MEMBERS/OFFICERS TO
ATTEND

CHANGE TO ORIGINAL WORK
PROGRAMME?YES/NO/REASON

Interviews with the Executive
Members - To be confirmed

Director for Digital, Sustainability
& Resources

To be confirmed No

Annual review of the recovery of
the Adur & Worthing evening and
night time economies

Director for Economy/Director for
Communities

Director for Economy/Director
for Communities

Yes. Item added as a result of JOSC
review.

Review of JOSC Work
Programme

Director for Digital, Sustainability
& Resources

No No

Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 16 March 2023

AGENDA ITEM REPORT AUTHOR EXECUTIVE
MEMBERS/OFFICERS TO
ATTEND

CHANGE TO ORIGINAL WORK
PROGRAMME?YES/NO/REASON

Review of the delivery of the new
Corporate Strategy and interview
with Chief Executive

Director for Digital, Sustainability
& Resources

Chief Executive No

Interviews with the Executive Director for Digital, Sustainability To be confirmed. No

6

34



Members - To be confirmed & Resources

Annual feedback report from
meetings of the West Sussex
Health & Adult Social Care
Scrutiny Committee (HASC) -
Issues affecting Adur & Worthing

Verbal report from the Council
Members on HASC

No No

JOSC Work Programme setting
2023/24

Director for Digital, Sustainability
& Resources

No No

Working Group reports - Dates to be confirmed

ITEM REPORT AUTHOR EXECUTIVE
MEMBER/OFFICERS TO
ATTEND

STATUS

Reports from the Working Group
reviewing the Adur Homes
repairs and maintenance service
and transformation

Chairman of the Working Group No Ongoing -Working Group currently in
progress

Final report from the Working
Group reviewing Cultural
Services

Chairman of the Working Group No Working Group currently reviewing
information  - Report expected in July
2022.

7

35



Additional items to be considered as part of the forward Work Programme in 2023/24

Note:- This draft Work Programme is a ‘live’ document and all dates and items contained in it are provisional and subject to change in
agreement with the JOSC Joint Chairmen/Vice-Chairmen, JOSC and relevant Officers

8

36



Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee
9 June 2022

]

Key Decision [No]

Ward(s) Affected:Central and Heene

JOSC Working Group - Review of the Worthing Business Improvement District
(BID)

Report by the Director for Digital, Sustainability & Resources

Executive Summary

1.    Purpose

1.1  This report sets out the recommendations from the Joint Overview and
Scrutiny Committee (JOSC) Working Group which was created as part of the
JOSC Work Programme to review the Worthing Business Improvement
District (BID).

2.    Recommendations

2.1  That JOSC consider the report and recommendations from the Worthing
Business Improvement District (BID) Working Group and refer the
recommendations to the appropriate Executive Committee or Sub-Committee
(JSC) for consideration in due course.

3. Context

3.1    As part of its Work Programme, JOSC agreed to set up a Working Group to
review the Worthing BID and proposed Business Plan for the BID prior to its

1
37

Agenda Item 9



renewal and ballot process which is due to be held in Autumn 2022 for a
further 5 year BID term which is due to run from 2023 - 2028. The Working
Group agreed the following terms of reference and project objectives for the
review as follows:-

(a) - To review the current Worthing Business Improvement District (BID)
process and its proposals for 2023-2028 to help allow the local authority to
make an informed decision as to whether the BID arrangements are likely to
conflict to a significant extent with an existing policy, place a financial burden
on rate payers or the burden from the proposed levy is unjust or whether they
should be considered for support; and

(b) To propose any recommendations and comments via the Joint Overview
and Scrutiny Committee (JOSC) to the Joint Strategic Committee and
Worthing Executive Members to assist with the BID process.

4. Issues for consideration

4.1 JOSC is asked to consider the report and recommendations from the
Worthing BID Working Group set out in the Appendix to this report and agree
to refer the recommendations to the appropriate Executive Committee or
Sub-Committee for further consideration in due course.

5. Engagement and Communication

5.1 The JOSC Working Group that has undertaken the BID review has held
discussions with relevant Council Officers, local businesses, the Worthing
Town Centre Initiative, other BID operators in England and the national BID
support organisation. Details of these discussions and the evidence
provided are set out in the accompanying report at the Appendix.

6. Financial Implications

6.1 There are no direct financial implications relating to this report but
recommendations contained in the Working Group report, if implemented, will
have financial implications as Worthing Borough Council is a BID Levy payer.

7. Legal Implications

7.1 Under Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the
power to do anything to facilitate or which is conducive or incidental to the
discharge of any of their functions.

2
38



7.2 Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 provides a Local Authority to do anything
that individuals may do (subject to any current restrictions or limitations
prescribed in existing legislation.

7.3 BIDs are partnerships between a local authority and local businesses through
a ballot process to provide services and improvements for the local
community. The provision of the services and improvements is funded by a
levy, paid by the local business rates payers in addition to non-domestic
rates.  The Local Government Act 2003 gives the Council the power to
approve the formation of a BID and to collect the BID levy that will fund
improvements. The Business Improvements District (England) Regulations
2013 sets out the requirements for establishing BIDs.

7.4 The Council may, in prescribed circumstances, veto BID proposals (within 14
days from the date of the ballot), for example if the BID scheme conflicts with
other plans or policies formally adopted by the Council or if it places a
significant financial burden on rate payers. There is then a right of appeal to
the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government within 28 days
of the result of the ballot being published.

Background Papers

Any papers referenced in the Working Group report.

Officer Contact Details:-
Mark Lowe
Scrutiny & Risk Officer
Tel: 01903 221009
mark.lowe@adur-worthing.gov.uk

3
39

mailto:mark.lowe@adur-worthing.gov.uk


Sustainability & Risk Assessment

1. Economic

Matter considered. The issues contained in the Working Group report relate to
to the BID which aims to improve the town centre economy and increase
footfall and spend.

2. Social

2.1 Social Value

Matter considered. A vibrant town centre with thriving businesses will help
improve social value for the communities of Adur and Worthing and visitors to
the town.

2.2 Equality Issues

Matter considered and no significant issues identified.

2.3 Community Safety Issues (Section 17)

Matter considered. The report from the Working Group has reviewed the BID
proposals for the fourth term which includes a priority to deliver a safer, more
welcoming town. Previous work of the BID to improve community safety in the
town has also been discussed during this review.

2.4 Human Rights Issues

Matter considered and no significant issues identified.

3. Environmental

The report from the Working Group has reviewed the environmental issues
connected with the Worthing BID proposals.

4. Governance

Matter considered. The JOSC Working Group has been set up in accordance
with the JOSC Procedure Rules and forms part of the agreed JOSC Work
Programme for 2021/22. Recommendations from the review will need to be
presented to the appropriate Executive Committee or Sub-Committee for
consideration.

4
40



Scrutiny review of the Worthing Business Improvement District (BID) and
plans for renewal of the BID for 2023 - 2028

Report by the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Working Group

1.0 Summary

1.1 This report reviews the Worthing Business Improvement District (BID) and
offers a series of findings and recommendations to improve how the BID could
work in a better way with Worthing Borough Council as the BID sets out its
proposals for the next five year term 2023-2028.

1.2 This report includes the results of research and consultations undertaken by
the Working Group to find out more about how the BID operates and views
from local businesses.

2.0 Background - What is the Worthing Business Improvement District (BID)
and the process for renewal of the BID?

2.1 The Worthing BID is a business-led initiative supported by Government
legislation which gives businesses the power to raise funds locally to be spent
locally on improving their trading environment. The Worthing BID is supported
by the Worthing Town Centre Initiative and the BID programme is funded by
the businesses themselves through a levy on non-domestic rates. BID
schemes operate for a period of 5 years. For the BID to go ahead, two
conditions must be met: over 50% of businesses that vote must vote in favour;
those businesses voting ‘yes’ must represent more than 50% of the total
rateable value of all votes cast. If both those conditions are fulfilled, payment
of the levy becomes mandatory for all eligible businesses, regardless of how
or whether they vote.

2.2 Worthing Borough Council is responsible for managing the ballot process,
collecting the levy from businesses on behalf of the BID and is also a levy
payer itself. The Borough Council has previously indicated that it did not want
to seek membership of the BID Board of Directors, however, former Councillor
Nicola Waight, who was previously Executive Member for Regeneration and
Fiona Burn, Place and Economy Manager had attended meetings of the BID

1
41



Steering Committee and Councillors Dan Humphreys and Kevin Jenkins have
previously attended these meetings.

2.3 The Worthing BID has operated since 2008 following a successful ballot and
there have since been two further renewal ballots in 2012 and 2017 with the
current BID operating until 31 March 2023 and is due for a further ballot in
Autumn 2022 if the BID wishes to operate for a 4th term from April 2023. In
order to proceed to ballot the BID must produce renewal proposals and
priorities for the BID to cover the five year BID term and the proposals will
need to be subject to consultation with levy payers. As part of this review, the
Working Group has received information from the Worthing BID on its
proposed draft Business Plan for the next term in consultation with local
businesses.

2.4 At the time of writing this report the draft 5 year BID Business Plan is being
finalised by the Worthing Town Centre Initiative. Details of the BID Business
Plan can be viewed here:-
https://indd.adobe.com/view/62f5eb5d-da28-4cf4-b413-f93ab60e0f68
The Worthing BID vision is for the BID area to be ‘clean, safe and vibrant, a
lively heart of the community where visitors are engaged and businesses
inspired and prosperous.’ The BID aims to help businesses work together to
ensure that the town thrives and that the voice of the Worthing town centre
business community is represented so that their views are considered in key
decisions being made for Worthing. The income for the BID over the 5 year
term was estimated to achieve an income of £1,425,900 which was made up
of levy income (£1,145,000 and income from the markets at £280,900). The
draft Business Plan is subject to consultation with the local businesses and
during Summer 2022 it will be discussed with local businesses to raise the
profile of the Plan. The BID priorities for the 4th term are:-

● Promoting the town and its businesses;
● Improving the visual appeal of the town;
● Delivering a safer more welcoming town;
● Driving footfall with markets, events and activities; and
● Business support and advice

2.5 Worthing Borough Council must be satisfied that the BID proposal is
acceptable and has the power to veto the BID if it is not satisfied. The
Borough Council should satisfy itself that the BID proposal does not conflict
with any existing local authority policy nor propose a disproportionate burden
on particular businesses by way of an unfair levy charge on a certain ‘class’ of
levy payers, for example by an inappropriate manipulation of the BID
boundary. It is sensible to do this prior to allowing the ballot to take place so
as to minimise the risk of having to veto the proposals following the ballot. An
unfair charge may be a disproportionately higher rate for one sector/group of
businesses that isn’t reflected in the scope of the BID proposals or perhaps a
disproportionately low rate for one sector/group of businesses that in effect
means their services are being heavily subsidised by others. An inappropriate
manipulation would involve examples such as capturing a high rateable value

2
42

https://indd.adobe.com/view/62f5eb5d-da28-4cf4-b413-f93ab60e0f68


property, which in geographical terms appears outside the scope of the BID.

3.0 Scope and Key Focus areas of the review

3.1 As part of the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JOSC) Work
Programme, JOSC agreed to set up the Working Group to review the
Worthing BID following the receipt of a scrutiny request received from
Councillor Kevin Jenkins.

3.2 The reason for the Scrutiny request was to establish where there was a
difference between the TCI and the BID and the impact of the BID on the town
centre. Councillor Jenkins was concerned that there had not been any real
scrutiny of the BID Business Plans prior to when the BID was first set up in
2008 and with subsequent renewal ballots held in 2012 and 2017. It was
claimed that no assessment had been made at that time to assess the impact
of the BID and that it was now time for the Council to find out what
the Business Plan would be going forward and how it would impact
businesses and what it would provide to the communities.

3.3 Councillors Charles James, Richard Nowak, Jon Roser and Rosey Whorlow
were appointed to the Working Group and Councillor Jon Roser was
appointed as Chairman of the Working Group.

3.4 The Working Group met on 10 January, 10 and 24 February and 9 and 24
March 2022 in what was a very intensive review which has provided a
substantial amount of evidence to assist with the review.

3.5 The Working Group has heard from key stakeholders, experts and businesses
connected with the Worthing BID process and also others connected with
other BIDs elsewhere in England.

3.6 The Working Group discussed and agreed Terms of Reference
and project objectives for the review as follows:-

(a) - To review the current Worthing Business Improvement District (BID)
process and its proposals for 2023-2028 to help allow the local authority to
make an informed decision as to whether the BID arrangements are likely to
conflict to a significant extent with an existing policy, place a financial burden
on rate payers or the burden from the proposed levy is unjust; and

(b) To propose any recommendations and comments via the Joint Overview
and Scrutiny Committee (JOSC) to the Joint Strategic Committee and
Worthing Executive Members to assist with the BID process.

3.7 The Working Group has held evidence gathering meetings with the following
Worthing BID stakeholders, experts and others connected with other BIDs.

3
43



Andy Willems - Head of Place & Economy, Adur & Worthing Councils
Fiona Burn - Place & Economy Manager, Adur & Worthing Councils
Judy Fox - Place Brand and Partnerships Manager, Time for Worthing, Adur &
Worthing Councils
Councillor Kevin Jenkins - Leader of Worthing Borough Council
Councillor Dan Humphreys - Former Leader of Worthing Borough Council
Sharon Clarke - Worthing Town Centre Manager on behalf of the Worthing
Town Centre Initiative
Sam Whittington - Chairman of the Worthing Town Centre Initiative and
Worthing BID
Neema Karia and Andre Castilho, Boston Tea Party, Montague Place,
Worthing
Richard Margaroli, Ardington Hotel, Steyne Gardens, Worthing
Natalie Matthews, Waitrose, Worthing
Paul O’Brien, ‘I Love Candy’, Bath Place, Worthing
Paul Battel, Blue Flame Optical, Royal Arcade, Worthing
Greg Grundy, The Egremont Public House, Brighton Road, Worthing
Chris Turner, Chief Executive, British BIDs
Paul Kinvig, Bournemouth Town Centre BID
Mandy White, Altrincham BID
Helen Marshall, Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Chichester BID
John Bownass, Hastings BID

3.8 This report provides the detail of the discussions and findings from the
Working Group and some recommendations which the Working Group
considers will help improve the Worthing BID and governance arrangements.

4.0 Findings and Proposals

4.1 The Working Group has received a great deal of evidence from the witnesses
that have been interviewed as part of this review. The evidence highlights very
clearly that there is a good level of support for the Worthing BID and
the value which it brings to the Town which is not in doubt. However, whilst
support for the BID is good the Working Group has received evidence
on some issues where better working could be applied to ensure the BID is
more successful.

4.2 A summary of issues and concerns gathered from the witnesses

4.3 Worthing Borough Council officers and Councillors

4.4 It was claimed that:-

● The BID appeared to be offering the same things at each renewal -
There was a staleness in the BID which was limiting innovation and the
variety of the offer

● Some Directors of the BID had been on the Board for a long time and
no longer had local businesses in the town

4
44



● There was a lack of consultation on changes to the work of the BID
● The focus of the BID has moved to core retail in the town centre and is

not helping businesses outside of this part of the BID area such as the
Western end of Montague Street and Brighton Road

● It was difficult to differentiate between the BID and the Town Centre
Initiative

● There was a disconnect between the aims of the BID and the
objectives of ‘Time for Worthing’ (TFW) which was leading to an
overlap of the work of the BID and TFW. It was suggested that there
was a need for both to work together in a better way.

● There was potentially some crossover with the work proposed in the
BID Business Plan and the work of the Council - eg Marketing
campaigns and Town Centre guide (overlap with the work of TFW),
there was limited coordination between the christmas lighting and the
trees. The trees are supplied by the Council and lighting by the BID.
This is an opportunity to work together on this aspect and refresh
where and how the lighting is displayed. There could be better
coordination on work to deliver a safer, more welcoming town with the
Councils Outreach and Community teams to find common solutions,
rather than run independent initiatives. Also, with regard to markets,
there might be a conflict of interest where the BID run the Wednesday
Market and the Adur Markets Team are now running a monthly
Farmers Market to support the town centre. Better coordination and
appreciation of what these markets deliver to the town centre is
needed.

4.5 Local businesses

4.6 The Working Group interviewed a number of local business representatives. A
summary of their views is that:-

● There is a good community spirit in the town centre. However, one
business commented that they had not been made aware of the BID
when arriving in Worthing. The business also considered that there
should be more events held in the town centre as part of the BID which
link along the Promenade and the town centre.

● The BID has provided the means for local businesses to have a forum
where they can express opinions and they can be discussed and
implemented, subject to agreement with the Directors of the BID. The
BID can provide a means for communication to improve the town
centre and to provide flowers along the Promenade.  The Town Centre
Rangers also help prevent shoplifting in the retail premises. The BID
also encourages people to come to the town by holding events such as
the Food Festival.

● The proposals in the new BID for Busking, Street Art and proposals to
set up Tourist Information Centres in empty shops to help visitors are
very interesting and there are also proposals to help the night time

5
45



economy and make people feel safer at night and encouraging more
night time events. The BID and TCI can complement what the Council is
doing and it puts a more human perspective on the work.

● If there need to be improvements in the way the BID works then this
could be with the relationship between the BID/TCI and the Council -
Eg Time for Worthing - Sometimes the BID and Time for Worthing are
not always working in unison. There is no business plan for Time for
Worthing at the moment which is not helping the BID achieve its
objectives.

● Every business is welcome to get involved with the BID and put
forward ideas. The process is very open and the Council would
struggle to replace this. The TCI is potentially doing more for tourism
than the Council for a long time. The Council has not helped in
improving the tourism sector for a long time.

● The Town Centre Rangers are good and the BID is more open to new
ideas with questionnaires sent out to businesses asking for
suggestions.

● The relationship is a bit fractious at the moment with the Councils
seeming not to want to get involved. Perhaps it is related to Time for
Worthing - Perhaps it was because the BID did not give enough
sponsorship funding for this. Some businesses have seen the value of
the BID whereas others haven't done so.

● It is useful to have Council officers to attend BID meetings for certain
agenda items where they are experts and they can give a firm answer
on what can and can’t be done. It would be great to have someone
from the Council on the BID Board. I think the Council don’t always
understand what the BID does. It would be good to have a great
working relationship with the Council. The goal for the BID is to have
more people coming through the doors and visiting the town which
should also be the aim of the Council.

● I think that it is important to keep the BID for the Town Centre Rangers,
the Christmas lights and the decorations which provide value for the
town. I want to see the BID provide more entertainment on the seafront
including rickshaw bikes, sea pedalos and a sea train along the
Promenade. A venue like the former Peter Pans Playground would be
helpful as would better lighting and a new skate park. I also think that it
would be helpful to have a chewing gum bank - This is a form of
recycling and is useful to prevent the gum being dropped on the street.
Stealing bicycles is also a problem at the moment. Perhaps there could
be some form of compound for people to leave their bicycles which is
manned and perhaps a small charge could be applied. This could
encourage people to cycle into the town.

6
46



● I was sceptical of the BID initially but have paid the levy now for about
5 or 6 years. It works for me and we do get coverage in Brighton Road
with the christmas lights and the flowers on the lampposts. The Food
Festival is really good and I would support the BID just because of that.
We are in the Worthing Guide and I feel that I am included in the BID.
The BID is not cheap but represents good value. The crime reduction
app is also helpful and allows us to report bad behaviour. I feel that the
impact of the BID is positive.

● I would like the BID to have more entertainment on the seafront in the
next few years in order to keep people in the town. Warwick Street is a
good eating area. We need to get the message out that Worthing is a
quality area. A Bikes rally might help as well. Events in Steyne
Gardens are very successful.

4.7 Evidence from other BIDs

4.8 The Working Group interviewed other BID operators from other parts of
England and a representative from British BIDs, the national body
representing BIDs across the UK. This evidence has provided the Working
Group with some useful insights and good practice on how BIDs operate
elsewhere. A summary of this evidence is:-

● That the Council should be involved on the BID Board if this satisfies a
local need. The Council should ensure due diligence is being
undertaken regularly and to check to see if the BID is operating cost
effectively in accordance with the operating agreement.

● Good BIDs will revisit the objectives on a regular basis. The BID board
should be flexible and representative of all sectors in the BID area.
BIDs should not get caught up in vanity projects which will not help
promote economic growth. Support from the businesses for a BID is a
measure of its success.

● Engagement of businesses in the work of the BID can be very
challenging.

● Councils need to believe and support in a BID for it to be successful.
BIDs need to be interactive and visible.

● Day to day relationships with the Council are very important for the BID
to be successful.

● It is important for a BID to stay independent and be seen as separate
from the Council. BIDs need to make sure that the BID levy payers
know what the BID is doing for them. BIDs will involve the businesses
in the BID work. BIDs are the voice of the businesses and the BID
needs to be kept unique to maintain credibility.

7
47



4.9 Evidence from Worthing Town Centre Initiative and BID

4.10 The Working Group interviewed Sharon Clarke, Worthing Town Centre
Manager and Sam Whittington, Chairman of the Town Centre Initiative at the
beginning of the review and then at the end after receiving other evidence.

4.11 The Working Group received detailed information which has helped to clarify
some of the issues raised in evidence from others. The TCI and the
BID were very much the same but that the TCI was set up before the BID.
The BID supported all businesses - Those who pay the levy and those that
don’t. The BID is run by the TCI but only businesses that pay the levy are part
of the BID. Because it had been difficult for some people to understand the
difference between the BID and TCI it was decided to incorporate the BID with
the TCI to make it easier to run and  make it clearer that the TCI and BID are
the same - It was now called the Town Centre Initiative Business Improvement
District.

4.12 The BID has a board of Directors and a Steering Committee. The Committee
meets once a month. Levy payers and non levy payers sit on the Committee
for a time. Businesses can express an interest in becoming members of the
Steering Committee, Directors have no term of office. It had been difficult to
get interest from businesses to be members and Directors and, therefore,
there was no term of office.

4.13 With regard to the work of TFW and the relationship with the BID, the Working
Group was advised that Sam Whittington had joined the Management Board
of TFW. They were aware that there were a number of crossovers with TFW
and mutual objectives where the TFW is working on the same purpose and ,
therefore, joining the Management Board would allow the BID and
TFW to work together. The Working Group was told that there was a will and
commitment to work with TFW where possible. The BID were waiting to
receive the details of the TFW Business Plan and would then sit down to
discuss how the BID could work together with TFW, however, regular
quarterly meetings were being held between the Councils and Sam
Whittington to discuss issues and ensure better co-ordination etc .

4.14 In terms of looking to provide more variety to the BID offer, the BID had
introduced a Business Crime Reduction Partnership which works well and
also the Town Centre Rangers. The BID was also working with the NBCP, the
National Crime Business Partnership to explain how it worked against crime.
The crime reduction element was important for businesses. The Food Festival

8
48



was also very successful with a high demand - 40% of Worthing traders at the
event were Worthing businesses. The BID Business Plan was considered to
be flexible which would allow the BID to move on and make improvements.

4.15 All new businesses are given a welcome pack which gives details of the town
and contacts etc. The BID will try and contact all businesses when they are
new to the town and all businesses are treated in the same way.

4.16 There was a view that the relationship between the Council and the BID had
changed over the last few years but they did not know why and there was a
view that the Council was secretive and that there was a lack of
Communication and understanding from the Council over the previous 2 or 3
years. it was important to be clear on what information could be shared from
the Council. However, work was being done to try and heal the relationship
and the Scrutiny review was helping in the process.  There was also a
previous decision from the Council for it not to be involved in the Board of the
BID but the BID was open to any new views proposing that the Council should
be a member of the Board but considered that it was important to
keep the BID business led.

5.0 Conclusions and recommendations

5.1 The Working Group would like to thank all those involved in this review for
their time, support and invaluable contributions throughout this process.

5.2 The Working Group offers a series of recommendations for how the Councils
can work with the BID and can regularly review the BID performance in order
to ensure that it is meeting its objectives. It is important for there to be an
effective working relationship.

6.0. Recommendations

6.1 Having reviewed the Worthing BID proposals for 2023 - 2028 the Working
Group considers that the Council should support the BID and vote ‘Yes’
in the ballot but that processes should be put in place to ensure that
there is better communication and collaboration from the Council and
others to help the BID be more successful.

Reason - The Working Group has received a great amount of evidence to
suggest that the BID is supported by the local businesses and they would like
the BID to continue - A good BID is good for the town and valued. The
businesses which the Working Group consulted were unanimous in support
for the BID and the evidence provided has illustrated to the Working Group
that the BID is supported by local businesses who want it to continue. Equally,

9
49



evidence has been received which suggested that for the BID to be more
successful there should be a closer working relationship with the Council
focusing on better communication and collaboration.

6.2 That the Worthing BID and the ‘Time for Worthing’ Initiative should work
in closer partnership once the TFW Business Plan is produced.

Reason - This is an opportunity to help both BID and TFW brands grow and
to dovetail with each other to benefit the local communities.

6.3 That the Town Centre Manager and Chairman of the Town Centre
Initiative and Worthing BID Team be congratulated on the work that they
are undertaking to provide the BID and offer

Reason - To recognise the valuable time and work provided in order to keep
the BID running smoothly and supporting the needs of local businesses. The
Working Group has received evidence recognising that the BID has a good
reputation, is working well and business support for the BID has increased
over the previous terms of the BID.

6.4 That an annual review report on the work of the BID be presented to the
Joint Strategic Committee and Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Reason - To provide regular updates to the Council on the progress and
performance of the BID and work which it is doing to meet its objectives. This
will enable the Council to closely monitor the work on an annual basis and
assess the value of the BID to the Worthing community. This will also enable
the Council to regularly check on the relationship between the Council and the
BID and action change if necessary rather than waiting until the BID is due for
renewal ballot again in 2027.

6.5 That the Council should continue with having Officer and Member
representation on the BID Steering Committee only.

Reason - The Working Group has considered this matter and is of the view
that the Council already has an adequate and effective Officer and Council
Member representation in place on the BID Steering Committee which
enables the Council to express its views and influence the progress of the BID
through this channel. Having additional Council representation at BID Board
level compromises the important principle that the BID should remain
independent from the Council and not seen as an arm of it.

10
50



Local Government Act 1972
Background Papers:

None

Contact Officer:

Councillor Jon Roser
Chairman of the JOSC Worthing BID Working Group
Town Hall,
Worthing
jon.roser@worthing.gov.uk

11
51

mailto:jon.roser@worthing.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2021/22
	8 JOSC Work Programme review
	JOSC 09.06.22 - Adur & Worthing Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme - 2022_23-  Appendix A

	9 JOSC Working Group - Review of the Worthing Business Improvement District (BID)
	Scrutiny review of the Worthing Business Improvement District (BID) - Working Group report


